
 
 

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT 
2 MONTGOMERY STREET, 3RD FL. 

JERSEY CITY, NJ  07302 
7/11/2014 

 
ADDENDUM # 4 

 
To prospective Responder for RFI # 37799 entitled, “Request for Information for the 
Replacement, Rehabilitation or Redesign and the Operation and Maintenance of the 
Cogeneration Plant and Related Infrastructure at John F. Kennedy International Airport”  
 

Revised due date 7/22/14, no later than 2:00 PM 
(Originally due on 6/26/2014, no later than 2:00 PM) 

 
I. BIDDER'S QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 
The following information is available in response to questions submitted by prospective 
Bidders.  The responses should not be deemed to answer all questions, which have been 
submitted by Bidders to the Port Authority.  It addresses only those questions, which the 
Port Authority has deemed to require additional information and/or clarification.  The 
fact that information has not been supplied with respect to any questions asked by a 
Bidders does not mean or imply, nor should it be deemed to mean or imply, any meaning, 
construction, or implication with respect to the terms.  
 
The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the 
information contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information 
accurately represents the conditions that would be encountered during the performance of 
the Contract. The furnishing of such information by the Port Authority shall not create or 
be deemed to create any obligation or liability upon it for any reason whatsoever and 
each Bidder, by submitting its Bid, expressly agrees that it has not relied upon the 
foregoing information, and that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible 
therefore in any manner whatsoever.  Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no 
representation, statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its Commissioners, officers, 
agents, representatives, or employees, oral or in writing, shall impair or limit the effect of 
the warranties of the Bidder required by this Bid or Contract and the Bidder agrees that it 
shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefore in any manner 
whatsoever. 
 
Q1.  Is the requirement for cooling and heating capacity of JFK airport expected to 
remain constant for the foreseeable future, or should the potential rework of the 
infrastructure be engineered to accommodate a specified increase in capacity (built-in 
expansion capability)? 
 

Page 1 of 5 



A1.  Required cooling and heating capacity of JFK airport will increase over time in 
conjunction with increases in terminal space. Total capacity requirements cannot be 
specified at this time; however, built-in expansion capable of supporting heating and 
cooling loads for about two million square feet should be considered.  
 
Q2.  Is there a listing of existing cogeneration facility, CHRP facility, TDS or Chilled 
water distribution equipment that is already known to be obsolete, in need of replacement 
or not expected to remain serviceable for an additional 20 years? 
A2.  No such listing exists at this time.  As a general measure due to age of equipment 
and current corrective maintenance procedures, a full condition assessment of the plant 
structure, equipment, as well as the TDS is required at this time. 
 
Q3.  Are there any limitations on the length of time the grounds that the TDS and/or 
chilled water system piping run through can be excavated (making the area partially 
impassable) or any limitations on the extent of the grounds the TDS and or chilled water 
system runs through can be excavated at any given time (affecting airport operations)? 
A3.  Yes. Careful consideration and planning will be required to phase in replacement of 
the TDS if deemed necessary.  The piping traverses the CTA area consisting of multiple 
structures, roadways, pedestrian access areas, and vehicular traffic. Excavation cannot be 
performed until proper maintenance of traffic and safety measures are in place as 
approved by The Port Authority. Site specifics and ongoing construction in each area will 
determine limitations and construction scheduling.  
 
Q4.  Are there any periods each year when the medium temperature water system and/or 
the chilled water system are not required to be in operation and could be made available 
for rework or replacement without impacting airport operations? Specify periods. 
A4.  While several terminals take hot and chilled water year round, as a general answer, 
airport “traffic” is generally lower (with exception for holidays and school breaks) during 
the spring shoulder season. To a lesser extent, there is a small window in the fall before 
the heating season.  
 
Q5.  Section 2.1 of the RFI states (last sentence of the first paragraph) that there are 
redundant electric chillers. Would you specify the capacity of the redundant electric 
chillers relative to total peak chilling needs and confirm they are separate from the 
absorption and centrifugal chillers that make up the primary water chilling system? 
A5.  Due to current load requirements, no redundant chillers exist at this time.  
 
Q6.  Please provide the specifications for the fuels currently being used in the 
cogeneration facility (gas and liquid). 
A6.  See attached Exhibit ‘A’ from Atlantic Analytical Laboratory.   
 
Q7.  Please provide nameplate data (make, model, design conditions and special 
capabilities) for current: 
- combustion turbines 
- steam turbines 
- generators 
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-  heat recovery steam generators 
-  absorption chillers 
-  centrifugal chillers 
-  electric chillers 
-  cooling towers 
A7. See attached Exhibit ‘B’ and Exhibit ‘C’ documents for nameplate data.   
 
Q8.  Please provide the steam turbine design point inlet, extraction and exhaust steam 
conditions. 
A8.  See attached Exhibit ‘C’ document for equipment specifications. 
 
Q9.  Please provide information on the current source of facility make-up water for 
evaluating options. Advise the average cost for make-up water within the airport 
operations (in 2013 figures). Are there concerns regarding increased water consumption 
with increased growth? 
A9.  Make-up water is supplied by NYCDEP. Water rates can be obtained directly from 
NYC Water Board. Alternative options for supplying makeup water should be 
considered.   
 
Q10.  Will any facility contracts with ConEd, NYPA, fuel suppliers, water suppliers, 
chemical suppliers, long-term vendors or special requirements of airport tenants or other / 
customers (which impact the cogeneration or CHRP, TDS and /or chilled water 
operations) extend beyond January 31, 2020?  
A10.  No contracts extend beyond 2020 at this time. 
 
Q11.  In order to evaluate construction schedule urgency, what is the cost to the Port 
Authority (per day, week or month), should the cogeneration plant be down for an 
extended period to repair or replace major equipment? This is with the understanding that 
medium temperature water and chilled water would still be made available for the TDS & 
chilled water systems via another energy source. 
A11.  Currently, the KIAC plant supplies power to the grid only; it does not directly feed 
JFK Airport.  As such, the scenario described would not result in power disruption to 
JFK.  Thermal supply, however, must remain operational at all times.   
 
Q12.  Please provide a general arrangement and plot plan drawing of the cogeneration 
facility and CHRP area. 
A12.  See attached Exhibit ‘D’ document for general arrangement drawings. 
 
Q13. Please provide steam and water balance documents for the cogeneration and CHRP 
systems currently installed for evaluation of improvement opportunities. 
A13. This information is proprietary to Calpine and cannot be shared at this time. 
 
Q14.  For planning purposes, please provide a diagram (marked up plot plan if necessary) 
showing the locations of the TDS and chilled water underground loop and lateral piping 
traversing through the airport areas and under roadways. 
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A14.  See attached Exhibit ‘E’ document for general routing of the TDS and chilled water 
piping.  
 
Q15.  Are the water supply and return pipes direct buried under the roadways or are they 
in sleeves or tunnels? 
A15.  The majority of TDS piping is direct buried with the exceptions of a few areas that 
are sleeved. 
 
Q16.  Please provide current plant automation system architecture diagram with 
respective panel layouts and point list for evaluation. 
A16.  This information is proprietary to Calpine and cannot be shared at this time. 
 
Q17.  Who owns the existing CHP plant at JFK?  Is it Calpine, the Port Authority or a 
joint venture? 
A17.  The Plant consists of a natural gas-fired, combined-cycle cogeneration power plant 
(excluding the installed generating units), a central heating and refrigeration plant, and a 
thermal distribution system serving JFK’s central terminal area. The physical plants that 
comprise the Plant are owned by the Port Authority and leased to a Partnership known as 
KIAC Partners, a New York general partnership between the Aviation Funding 
Corporation and Calpine KIA, Inc. Note: Two installed gas turbine generator units are 
owned by the Partnership. 

Q18.  What will the ownership structure be at the end of the contract in 2020? 
A18.  The ownership structure at the end of the contract in 2020 will be determined at the 
Port Authority’s discretion. The Port Authority may elect to maintain the existing 
structure (see answer above) or assign Plant ownership to a new entity.      

Q19.  Is a copy of the existing Calpine contract available at this time? 
A19.  No. 

Q20.  Can you provide annual operational characteristics of the plant including total 
generation, efficiency, availability/ reliability, and any other key performance indicators 
that are of concern to the Port Authority?  
A20.  Specific data related to efficiency, availability and key performance indicators are 
generally proprietary and confidential in nature. This facility is critical to the operation of 
the airport. As with any critical facility, the expectations for the future of KIAC include 
key performance indicators such as resiliency, reliability, and efficiency.   
 
Q21.  Could you provide a qualitative description of the chief issues with the existing 
plant (if any) that are of concern to the Port Authority? What historically has caused any 
unplanned plant outages if any?  
A21.  Age and continued operation warrant a full condition assessment of the plant at this 
time. The expectation is the majority of equipment is outdated and has reached the end of 
its useful life. Through recent weather events such as Hurricane Irene and Sandy, the 
plant continued operation.  
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Q22.  Could you provide a qualitative description of the chief concerns with the 
distribution system throughout the Airport?   
 
A22.  Age and continued operation warrant a full condition assessment of the TDS at this 
time. The piping system is a thin-walled, pre-stressed, engineered solution.  Over time, 
soil conditions, localized repairs comprising the pre-stressed system, and water 
infiltration through insulating jacketing have contributed to piping failures through the 
TDS.   
 

 
This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your Bid upon 
submission. 
 
In case any Bidder fails to conform to these instructions, its Bid will nevertheless be 
construed as though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed. 
 
      THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ  
      Kathy Leslie Whelan 
      ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 
      Commodities & Services Division 
 
BIDDER'S FIRM NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
INITIALED: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO  
Mr. Richard A. Grehl, WHO CAN BE REACHED AT (201) 395-3441 or at 
rgrehl@panynj.gov. 
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Exhibit A - Liquid Fuel Specification



Exhibit A - Natural Gas



Exhibit A - Natural Gas



Exhibit B - 1000 Ton Centrifugal Chiller



Exhibit B - 1400 Ton Absorption Chiller



Exhibit B - 6000 Ton 5500 Ton Centrifugal Chiller



Exhibit B - Cooling Tower



Exhibit B - CTG



Exhibit B - HRSG 1



Exhibit B - HRSG 2



Exhibit C - STG



Exhibit D - General arrangement
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Exhibit E - JFK TDS and CHW Pipe 1
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